
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
****COMMISSIONERS MEETING ROOM GROUND FLOOR**** 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 
September 13, 2021 

6:00 p.m. 
*** The meeting will be live streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page. 

***See Revised Continued Precautions in Response to Covid-19 at bottom of Page 2. 
*** Citizen Access will be available with limited Seating. *** 

 
I. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  

NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 
DISTRICT 1 – SHEILA G. JONES     
DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY, CHAIR     
DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN     
DISTRICT 4 – GERALD STUNKEL – VICE-CHAIR     
DISTRICT 5  - STEVEN LEDFORD     
  
 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       
III.    Invocation – District 1 
         
 IV.    Approval of Agenda 
             
 V.      Consent Agenda –  
1.  Approval of Minutes: 

• August 2,  2021 – Regular Meeting Minutes 
• August 23, 2021 – Called Meeting Minutes 
 

2.   Check Register – Check #’s   62232 - 62635 
 
VI.   Public Hearing  

Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as rezoning, 
ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the County 
Commissioners.  Following the public hearing, the Board of Commissioners will take action on each 
item presented below.  
 

 
 

Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more than ten 
(10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens,  county employees or other events by the 
Commissioners.   

 
September 17, 2021 - Constitution Day and Citizenship Day,  

September 13-18, 2021 - Freedom Week 
 
 
The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the Commission 
for not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  Please  
be courteous of the 3 minute time limit. Comments noted from citizens via the Jasper County FB Page. 

VIII. Citizens Comments 

VII. Presentations/Delegations 



XIII. Executive Session 
 

 

IX. County Commissioner Items  
 

X.   Regular Agenda 
 
Business Items: 

1. Joint Development Authority FY 2022 Budget & FY 2021 Budget Amended 
2. Jasper County Recreation Board Appointment  
3. JCWSA Enabling Legislation Amendment – Board Size 
4. Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority Board Appointments 
5. Planning and Zoning Board Appointment 
6. Senior Center FY 2021 Budget Amendments  
7. Human Resources Report 
8. FY2021 Audit Engagement – Clifton, Lipford, Hardison & Parker, LLC  
9. New Public Works Shop Building – Final Cost Funding Source 
10. CDBG Heath Department Project – Remaining Funds Disposition 
11. Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

 
XI.   County Attorney Items 

XII.   County Manager Update 

 
 

Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as provided by O.C.G.A.  
§50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real estate as provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-3(4); 
and discussion on employment, compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided 
in O.C.G.A. § 50-14-3(6)  
 

TO BE HELD 
XIV. Adjournment  
 

****Details for Meeting Attendance**** 

• All persons will be temperature checked at the door. 
• Temperature readings of 100.4 or higher will not be allowed to enter the building. 

• Masks will be provided and recommended to be worn, but not required. 
• Seating will be Limited.  

  



Consent Agenda – Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  September 13, 2021 
 
Subject:  Approval of Minutes 
 
Summary: 
 
 
Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 

 
• August  2,  2021 – Regular Meeting Minutes 
• August 23, 2021 – Called Meeting Minutes 

 
 
 
Background: 
 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Approve minutes for:  
 

• August  2,  2021 – Regular Meeting Minutes 
• August 23, 2021 – Called Meeting Minutes 

  



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 2, 2021 – Regular Meeting  
 

   Jasper County Board of Commissioners 
August 2, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
6:00 P.M. 

 
Vice-Chairman Stunkel called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
Commissioners Present: Gerald Stunkel, Vice-Chairman, Don Jernigan, Sheila Jones and Steven Ledford. 
Chairman Henry was absent 

Staff Present: Mike Benton, County Manager, Sharon Robinson, Administrative Services Director, and David 
Ozburn, County Attorney.  

Pledge of Allegiance: 

Invocation:  County Manager, Mike Benton 
 
Agenda Approval:   
 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to remove item #2 (Jasper County Library Board Appointments). 
Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed unanimously. Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve 
the agenda with the suggested changes. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Consent Agenda:  
Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the minutes for July 12, 2021 as presented. Commissioner Jones 
seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to approve Check Register Check #s- 62034-62231. Commissioner Ledford 
seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Public Hearing: None 
 
Presentations/Delegations- None 
 
Citizens Comments: None 
 
County Commissioner’s Items: 
 
Commissioner Ledford- None 
 
Commissioner Stunkel- None  
 
Commissioner Jernigan- Commissioner Jernigan stated that he know we recently purchased a Brush Cutting 
machine. He stated that we either need to buy another one or hire a contractor. Some of the roads in the county 
are getting impassable.  
 
Commissioner Stunkel asked the county Manager if he has been able to get a quote. Mr. Benton stated that he is 
still waiting on the quote. Commissioner Stunkel stated that we should just put the work out for bids for other 
contractors to take a look at.   
 
Commissioner Jones- None 
Chairman Henry- Absent 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 2, 2021 – Regular Meeting  
 

 

Regular Agenda: 
 
Item 1:  Alcohol License Transfer- Shane One Stop:  
 
Gautamkumar Patel has applied for a transfer of alcohol license for retail sales for beer and wine for the 
remainder of 2021 for Shane One Stop located at 8541 Hwy 142 Shady Dale, Ga 31085.  The transfer would 
take place at the time of the sale of the business. The proposed sale is for mid to late August timeframe. The 
original application was 2021-A-008 and this new application for the transfer is 2021-A-011. A background 
check was performed on the applicant and came back with a clean record. 
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the transfer of the alcohol license for retail of beer and wine from 
the current license holder to the applicant, Gautamkumar Patel for the establishment known as Shane One Stop 
located at 8541 Hwy 142, Shady Dale to be effective at the closing date of the sale of the business. 
Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
  
Item 2:  Jasper County Library Board Appointments:   
 
Removed from the agenda. 
 
Item 3: Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority Board Appointment:  
 
Mr. Burch of Eagle Drive, Monticello stood before the board to express his interest and qualifications to serve 
on the Water Authority Board. He stated that he has water collection experience.  
 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to appoint Ron Burch to a 3-year term July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2024. 
Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously. 
 
 
Item 4: Jasper County Recreation Association Board Bylaws Change from 9 to 7 Members:  
 
Mr. Benton stated that the current Recreation Bylaws calls for a 9 member board. The board has had 
conversation and feels that 7 is a better number for the Recreation Board. Commissioner Jernigan motioned to 
change the Jasper County Recreation Association Board By-laws from a 9 member to a 7 member board. 
Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
 
Item 5: FY2022 NEGRC AAA Contract- Senior Center:  
 
Tracy Norton stood before the board she stated that this is the annual contract for Aging Services. This service 
provide home delivered meals, congregate services, telephone reassurance. There is a small county match 
required of $5546.  
 
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to approve the FY22 NEGRC Contract for Aging Services. Commissioner 
Jones seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 6: FY 2022 NEGRC Transportation Contract- Senior Center:   
 
Tracy Norton stated that Transportation contract is another way that we generate revenue. We provide 
contracted Aging Services through coordinated transportation, daily trips for congregant members, and provide 
aging trips to doctor appointments and pharmacy runs. We are a provider of secondary resource. Commissioner 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 2, 2021 – Regular Meeting  
 

Stunkel stated that our insurance exceeds the requirements by the state. Commissioner Ledford motioned to 
approve FY 2022 NEGRC Transportation Contract and authorize Vice-Chairman to sign. 
 
Item 7: FY 2022 GA Foods Contract Amendment- Senior Center:  
 
Tracy Norton stated that groceries are going up. She stated that we some increases earlier on but GA Foods is 
requesting a 2% raise. This amount will be reimbursed through Federal and State reimbursements. It does not 
require that the County increase its portion by 2%. Commissioner Jernigan motioned to approve the GA Foods 
Contract Amendment to include meal cost changes and authorize Chairman/Vice Chairman to sign the contract. 
Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed unanimously.   
 
 
 
Item 8: FY 2021 Budget Amendment- Remaining Fundraising Balance from FY 2020- Senior Center:  
 
Tracy Norton stated that FY 2020 had an ending balance of $3,754.93.  She is requesting to move that balance 
forward to the FY 2021 budget in the fundraiser line item. Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve Budget 
Amendment #2021.08.02A to move FY 2020 unspent fundraiser balance of $3,754.93 from general fund 
balance to FY 2021 budget. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the motion, passed unanimously. 
 
Item 9: FY 2022 Budget Amendment- Remaining Fundraising Balance from FY 2021- Senior Center:  
 
Dennis Pated stated that this is basically the same as the last item, moving fundraising balances over to the FY 
2022. Commissioner Jernigan motioned to approve Budget Amendment #2021.08.02B to move FY 2021 
unspent fundraiser balance of $1,866.58 from general fund balance to FY 2022 budget. Commissioner Ledford 
seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 7: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings:   
 
Mike Benton stated that a Work Session may need to be held to discuss the upcoming redistricting. The board 
agreed to tentatively have a Work Session, Monday August 23, 2021. 
 
County Attorney Items:   
 
None, but would like an Executive Session for potential Real Estate acquisition. 
 
County Manager Items:  
 
Mr. Benton stated that we have received six applications for the Recreation Director position. He and the HR 
director have had the first interview. We have received one application for the Senior Accountant Position. Mr. 
Benton stated that he heard back about the Truck route progress. GDOT has received bids but the bid has not 
been awarded yet. He spoke with Pittman about the most recent LMIG. They have had the utilities located. He 
has been assured that the construction will begin soon. Building Permits for July totaled 13 new construction. 
For the year to date the total is 91 new construction permits and 399 total permits.  
 
Commissioner Jernigan requested that he is made aware when the construction start date is so that he can make 
residents aware and have it placed on the neighborhood website.   
 
Executive Session:  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to go into Executive Session to discuss potential litigation at 6:45 p.m. to 
discuss potential litigation. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 2, 2021 – Regular Meeting  
 

 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to exit Executive Session at 7:00 p.m. Commissioner Ledford seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve Chairman Henry to enter into the agreement settlement with Mr. 
Burton for the tax parcel. Commissioner Stunkel seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
 
Adjourn: 
Commissioner Stunkel motioned to adjourn the meeting at 8:05 p.m. Commissioner Ledford seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously. 
 

___________________________ 

Gerald Stunkel, Vice-Chairman 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sharon Robinson, Clerk 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 23, 2021 – Called Meeting  
 

   Jasper County Board of Commissioners 
August 23, 2021 

Called Meeting Minutes 
6:00 P.M. 

 
Chairman Henry called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
Commissioners Present: Bruce Henry, Chairman, Gerald Stunkel, Vice-Chairman, Don Jernigan, Sheila Jones 
and Steven Ledford 

Staff Present: Mike Benton, County Manager, and Sharon Robinson, Administrative Services Director  

Pledge of Allegiance: 

Invocation:  Commissioner Steven Ledford, District 5 
 
Agenda Approval:   
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the agenda as presented. Commissioner Stunkel seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Consent Agenda:  
 
Public Hearing: None 
 
Presentations/Delegations- None 
 
Citizens Comments:  
Mary Patrick- Ms. Patrick stood before the board to discuss a few things. She stated that there are a lot of 
people on the PPP list of recipients. She ask if the Planning and Zoning Department have business license for 
many of them. She stated that she feels the county should find the businesses and make them pay for a business 
license and fines. She stated that AT&T wants $22 million to run broadband when we already have paid Central 
GA EMC $1 million so she hopes that is a zero. She is interest in the bond issue for the Jail Expansion. She 
stated that SPLOST is a lot easier on the tax payers than a bond. She stated that she would like to know if the 
Commissioners would agree to declare September 13-17 as Freedom Week. She stated that September 17th is 
Constitution Day. She has a template.  
 
County Commissioner’s Items: 
 
Commissioner Ledford- None 
 
Commissioner Stunkel-  
Commissioner Stunkel stated that several weeks ago he was approached about an issue involving a building 
permit question. An investigation was done on a property. The property owner is going to end up paying more 
$3700 in fees and penalties plus hoops to jump through and that person just happens to be on the Planning and 
Zoning Board and they have personal reasons to resign from that board currently. He stated well done to the 
Planning and Zoning. 
 
Commissioner Jernigan- None 
 
Commissioner Jones- None 
 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 23, 2021 – Called Meeting  
 

Chairman Henry- Chairman Henry reminded everyone of the Carl Pennamon Memorial Highway Dedication 
on August 28th.   

Regular Agenda: 
 
Item 1:  Letter of Intent for Underwriting Services- Raymond James Financial:  
 
Commissioner Stunkel stated that the PFA board is moving right along with getting all of the funding together 
for the jail expansion project. In doing that they have to have bonding company to work with. This is a non-
binding letter of intent. There was a previous letter of intent signed but was sign by the late Carl Pennamon. 
They are requesting an updated letter of intent with the current chairman’s signature.  
 
Commissioner Stunkel motioned to authorize Chairman to sign the non-binding Raymond James Financial 
Letter of Intent dated August 23, 2021 as presented. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the motion, passed 
unanimously.  
  
Item 2:  Architectural Firm-Sheriff’s Office and Jail Renovation & Expansion Project:   
 
Chairman Henry stated that we will need to contact an Architectural firm to the Jail renovation and expansion.  
 
Commissioner Stunkel stated that Precision Planning is the firm that did the original plans and project for the 
current jail. They have been involved with the Sheriff to discuss our current needs. The biggest need right now 
is housing for female inmates. This expansion will expand the female side to 24 beds from the current 8 beds. 
There will be separate medical facilities for the males and females. He stated that we would like to continue 
with Precision Planning since they know the current building. He stated that they are asking that they go with a 
Construction Manager at Risk with guaranteed maximum price option. This means that the Architecture Firm 
will hire a Project Manager who would go out and get a maximum amount that would be spent. If material costs 
increase they would be responsible. They would also be responsible if they project goes over budget. The bond 
will not be more than 10 years because this is not a huge project.   
 
Commissioner Stunkel motion to approve Precision Planning as the Architectural Firm for Jail Renovation and 
Expansion. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 3: Lake Pines Development- Landers Lane Access Improvements:   
 
Chairman Henry stated that we have question about the entry lines for the new Lake Pines Development. GDOT 
was not requiring any new changes to the road. The preliminary plat that was approved does show a D-cell lane. 
They were also asking if the county would be willing to ask for that improvement and either pay for it or get 
DOT to pay for it using the county as a reference. He state that when he first saw it his first thought was if we 
have an favors coming from GDOT  the county needs to save those and let the builder pay for any 
improvements that are needed.   
 
Mike Benton stated that the motion needs to be changed.  
 
Commissioner Ledford stated that it is only calling for a D-cell lane coming from towards Jackson Lake. He 
stated that he would like to see a turning lane as opposed to a d-cell lane.  
 
Shane Sealy stated that GDOT has a checklist that they will review. By the road being a county road, the county 
has to be the applicant to DOT. The cost would go to the developer. The Engineer and the Developer cannot 
proceed with the project unless the county agrees to be the applicant to DOT. 
 
Chairman Henry ask how much of a delay will it cause if this item is tabled until September.  



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 23, 2021 – Called Meeting  
 

 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to table this item until the next meeting to contact GDOT about D-cell lane. 
Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 4: Service Delivery Strategy Update:  
 
Chairman Henry stated that the map has been presented and discussed. It has been approved by the City of 
Shady Dale and the City of Monticello. It has to be approved by all three governments.  
Commissioner Stunkel motioned to adopt Resolution #2021.08.23 updating the Water Service Area component 
of the Jasper County Service Delivery Strategy as presented. Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, 
passed unanimously.  
 
Item 5: Broadband Project – AT&T – Arp- State Fiscal Recovery Fund:  
 
Chairman Henry stated that we were approached by Paul Chambers who came over and sat with Mike Benton 
and the Chairman. They put together somewhat a proposal. The deadline on that proposal was August 31st. He 
state that he thinks it’s a moot point at this time.  
 
Commissioner Stunkel motioned to table this item until a later date. Commissioner Ledford seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 6: Redistricting Overview- 2020 Census:   
 
Chairman Henry stated that we will never have the districts exact. However, District 1 and District 2 will need 
additional citizens. Districts 3, 4, and 5 will need people taken away. We are working with NEGRC who has 
given us a price of $1500-$2000. They will give options and we would move forward with the options that 
follows all legal parameters. We will have to decide how we would like to get our map drawn.   
 
Mike Benton stated that our options are use NEGRC.  
 
Carol Norris stated that the other option is to go through the Office of Reapportionment. There is not cost with 
the state.  
 
Mr. Benton stated that Ms. Wright with the State stated that normally the timeline to have a certified map is 
before a special session. The time has not run out to choose the state to do the redistricting.  
 
Commissioner Stunkel stated that he thinks we should first get the Board of Education to sign on and both us 
the same  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to use NEGRC and State Reapportionment for redistricting maps. 
Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed unanimously 
 
County Attorney Items:  Absent 
 
County Manager Items:  
 
Dennis Pate announced to the board that the candidate had accepted the Finance position. The employee will 
start on September 7th.   
 
Executive Session: None 
 
 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 23, 2021 – Called Meeting  
 

 
 
Adjourn: 
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to adjourn the meeting at 6:48 p.m. Commissioner Stunkel seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously. 
 

___________________________ 

Bruce Henry, Chairman 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sharon Robinson, Clerk 



 

Consent Agenda – Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  September 13, 2021 
 
Subject:  Approval of Check Register 
 
 
Summary: 
 
A check register will be generated by the finance department on meeting day for signature and approval to 
process the checks. 
 
Background: 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Approve processing of check #’s 62232 - 62635 



 
 
 
 
 
 

JASPER COUNTY GEORGIA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CONSTITUTION DAY AND CITIZENSHIP DAY 

FREEDOM WEEK 2021 
PROCLAMATION 

 
 
 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, our Founding Fathers, in order to secure the blessings of liberty for 
themselves and their posterity, did ordain and establish a Constitution for 
the United States  of America; and 

 
WHEREAS, at the culmination of months of deliberation, debate and compromise, on 

September 17, 1787, the Constitution of the United States of America was 
signed;  and 

 
WHEREAS, September 17, 2021, marks the 234th anniversary of the signing of the 

Constitution of the United States of America by the Constitutional Convention;  
and 

 
WHEREAS, through all its changes over the years, the Constitution’s foundation has 

endured and adapted; and it is the supreme law of our land; and 
 

WHEREAS, Constitution Day and Citizenship Day are celebrated on September 17 each 
year  during the celebration of Freedom Week which is celebrated 
between September 13 and September 18, 2021; and 

 
WHEREAS, the adoption of the Constitution and the independence and freedoms 

guaranteed to American  citizens, whether by birth or by naturalization, 
should be celebrated by appropriate ceremonies and activities during 
Freedom Week,  

 
NOW, THEREFORE: the Jasper County Board of Commissioners, do hereby proclaim September 

17, 2021, as   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 

and September 13 through September 18, 2021, as 
 

      FREEDOM WEEK 
 

and the Jasper County Board of Commissioners encourage governmental 
leaders, as well as leaders of civic, social and educational organizations, to 
conduct ceremonies and programs that bring together community 
members to reflect on the importance of active citizenship, recognize the 
enduring strength of our Constitution, and reaffirm our commitment to 
the rights and obligations of citizenship in this great Nation. 

 
FURTHERMORE, the Board urges all citizens of Jasper County,  GA to reflect during this week 

on the many benefits of  our Federal Constitution and the responsibilities 
and privileges of American citizenship. 

 

IN WITNESS 
WHEREOF, 

Upon vote and approval by the Jasper County GA Board of 
Commissioners, we set our signatures and declare Freedom Week on this 
13th day of September, 2021. 

 
 

 

 
_____________________________    ________________________________ 
Bruce Henry, Chairman, District 2    Gerald Stunkel, Vice Chair, District 4 
 
 
____________________________    ________________________________ 
Sheila Jones, District 1      Don Jernigan, District 3 
 
     

__________________________ 
    Steven Ledford, District 5 
 



Business Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   September 13, 2021 
 
Subject: Joint Development Authority FY 2022 Budget & FY 2021 Budget Amended 
 
 
Summary:  
  
BOC needs to review and approve the Joint Development Authority Budgets for FY 2022 and FY 2021 
Amended 
 
 
Background:  
 
Per the September 20, 2016 Intergovernmental Contract - Revenue Sharing Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Approve the Joint Development Authority Budgets for FY 2022 and FY 2021 Amended as Presented 
  





















Business – Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Recreation 
 
Date:   September 13, 2021 
 
Subject: Recreation Department Board Appointment 
 
 
Summary:  
  
Jasper County Recreation Board has 3 vacancies that need to be filled.  
The following people have expressed interest in serving on the Board: 
 
Miranda Hudson 
 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County Recreation Board is a seven (7) member board  
 
 
 
 
Cost:  None 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Appoint Miranda Hudson to the Jasper County Recreation Board for a 3-year term ending  
September 2024 
  









Business Item 3: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Jasper County Water & Sewer Authority 
 
Date:   September 13, 2021 
 
Subject: Jasper County Water & Sewer Authority Enabling Legislation Amendment – Board Size 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Discussion regarding supporting a resolution requesting amending local legislation to change the 
number of members on the Jasper County Water & Sewer Authority Board.  
 
 
 
Background:  
 
HB 972 created the Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority with nine members. 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Board Discretion 
 



Business Item 4: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   September 13, 2021 
 
Subject: Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority Board Appointments  
 
 
Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority has 2 vacant positons, (Elvis Singleton’s term expired May 2021, 
and 1 term replacement due to the resignation of Eileen Ott whose term will expire March 2024. 
 

• Elvis Singleton is requesting to be re-appointed for another 3-year term.  
• Ronald Garren is seeking appointment. 

 
 
 
Background: 
  
The Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority is a 9-member Board, appointed by the Board of Commissioners 
to serve 3-year terms. The terms begin at appointment and expire at the 3 year mark. 
 
 
Cost: 
 
None 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Appoint Elvis Singleton and Ronald Garren to the Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority Board for a 3-year 
term expiring September 2024. 
 
  



JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

126 W. Greene St. Ste. 18, Monticello, GA 31064
706-468-4900 

www.jaspercountyga.org

APPLICATION FOR BOARDS, COMMITTEES, & AUTHORITIES

Name:   Elvis G. Singleton 

Address:   1157 Stag Run Drive

Mansfield, GA  30055

Home Phone: 

Work Phone: 

Cell Phone:

404-401-9324

404-401-9324 

404-401-9324

Occupation: E-mail: elvispba@bellsouth.net

I would like to apply for appointment to the following Board, Committee, or Authority:

Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority

How long have you been a resident of Jasper County? 
______________________________________________________________________________

Which Jasper County distric t do you live in ?

_____ (1)          _____ (2)          _____ (3)          _____ (4)           _____ (5)

What qualifications, experience, and certifications do you possess that should be considered for
the Board, Committee, or Authority you are seeking appointment on?
2010 - present:  Member, Jasper Co. Water and Sewer Authority
2012-2019:  Vice Chair, Jasper Co. Water and Sewer Authority

2019-present:  Chairman, Jasper Co. Water and Sewer Authority

Are you currently serving on another Board, Committee, Authority or elected position?
____ Yes     _____ NO     If Yes, please list.

Chairman, Jasper Co. Water and Sewer Authority

Would there be any possible conflict of interest between your employment or your family, and your 
serving on the Board, Committee, or Authority you are seeking appointment on?

____ Yes    _____ NO     If Yes, please explain.

Pastor, Trinity FSH Ministries, Inc.

14 years

  X

X

  X



What is your vision for the county’s future in relation to the Board, Committee, or
Authority you are seeking appointment on?

To help improve the water system infrastructure to better prepare for and promote business
growth in the County.

Explain your understanding of the duties of this Board, Committee, or Authority:

To help assist in maintaining good water quality for the County and assist in ways to improve

the system.

Briefly explain why you seek appointment to this Board, Committee, or Authority:
Once again, to assist with improving the water system so more businesses may consider

Jasper Co. a viable location to do business.

Are you in any way related to a County Elected Official or County Employee? If so, please describe.

No.

If appointed, I agree to serve and participate in required and or voluntary training.  ____Yes   _____ No

August 2, 2021
Signature Application Date

*This application should be submitted to the Jasper County Board of Commissioners,
Attn: Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk. Any additional information may be included on a
separate page.

NOTE: Information provided on this form is subject to disclosure as a public record under Georgia
Open Records Law.

X









Business Item 5: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   September 13, 2021 
 
Subject: Planning and Zoning Board Appointments 
 
 
Summary: 
 
Planning and Zoning has 1 vacancy on the Planning and Zoning Board. 
 
Staff has advertised the position.  
 
The Board of Commissioners needs to appoint a citizen to fill the position vacated by Mike McCombie which 
expires March 2022.  
 
The following people have expressed interest in serving on this board: 
 
Bill Nash 
Bobby Jacobs 
 
 
Background:  
 
  Members of the Planning and Zoning Board serve 3-year terms.  
                    
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Appoint 1 member to the Planning and Zoning Board to a 3-year term to September 2024. 
 
  















Business Item 6:  
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Senior Center  
 
Date: September 13, 2021 
 
Subject: Senior Center FY 21 Budget Amendments  
 
Summary:  
 
Budget Amendment A: 
 
The Senior Center received from Northeast Georgia Regional Commission (NEGRC) Area Agency on Aging a 
total of $114,061.14. The original budgeted revenue for FY 2021 was $88,112. The Budget amendment amount 
is $25,949.  
 
 
Budget Amendment B: 
 
The Senior Center received emergency funding through the CARES Act for $22,670.06, ADRC CARES 
funding for $6,084.15, and FFCRA funding for $5,230.90. We are requesting a budget amendment for FY21 
totaling $33,985.11 to help offset the cost for extra meals for the aging during the pandemic.  
 
 
 
 
Background:  
Cost: $0  
 
Recommended Motion:  
Approve the Budget Amendment #’a 2021.09.13A and 2021.09.13B as presented for FY21 for Jasper County 
Senior Center Revenue. 
  







Business Item 7: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Human Resources 
 
Date:    September 13, 2021 
 
Subject:  Human Resources Report 
  
 
Summary:  
 
Staff will present a Human Resources Report. 
 
Background:                                                                                                                                                                 
Staff has been requested to provide a Human Resources Report. Reports will be provided in the months of 
March, June, September, and December going forward. 
Cost: 
None    
Recommended Motion:                                                                                                                                    
None Required 
  



 

 

Jasper County Human Resources Report 
Period Covered: July 2021– September 2021 

 

Current Open Positions 
Operator I  
Senior Center Director  
EMT  
Paramedics  
911 Dispatchers 

New Hires 
Public Works – 1 
Fire Rescue – 1 (part-time) 
Sheriff - 2 
Jail – 3 
Animal Control – 1 (part-time) 
Assistant DA Secretary/Victims Advocate – 1 
Recreation – 1 
Finance - 1 

Terminations/Resignations 
Public Works – 2 
Sheriff – 3 
Jail - 2 
Fire Rescue – 1 
Recreation – 2 (part-time) 
Assistant DA Secretary – 1 
Superior Court – 1 
Senior Center - 1 

Total Employees = 168 
Full-time = 124 
Part-time = 44 



Page | 2 

 
 
 
 

                                                                      
Jasper County Boards Report 

Period Covered: July 2021 – September 2021 
 

Upcoming Board Appointments Needed: 
Jasper County Library Board: 1 
Jasper County Water & Sewer Authority:  2 
Jasper County DFCS Board: 1  
Jasper County Recreation Board: 2 
 



Business Item 8: 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

Department:  Finance  

Date:  September 13, 2021 

Subject:  FY2021 Audit Engagement – Clifton, Lipford, Hardison & Parker, LLC  

Summary:                                                                                                                                                          

Mark Hardison with Clifton, Lipford, Hardison & Parker, LLC has submitted the FY2021 Audit 
Engagement letter for execution.  Staff is seeking the Boards approval for the County Manager to 
engage the service of Clifton, Lipford, Hardison & Parker to perform the FY2021 Audit of 
Jasper County, Georgia 

     
 

Background:                                                                                                                                                                 

 

Cost: 

$33,000.00 - $38,000.00    

   

Recommended Motion:      

Motion to approve County Manager Mike Benton to execute the FY2021 Audit Engagement 
letter for Clifton, Lipford, Hardison, & Parker to perform the FY2021 audit of Jasper County, 
Georgia                                                                                                                                

 

 

 

 

  





















Business Item 9: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Public Works 
 
Date:   September 13, 2021 
 
Subject: New Public Works Shop Building – Final Cost Funding Source 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Funding Sources Available: 
 
Available Capital Fund Balance   $444,176 
 
Audited 6-30-2020 General Fund Balance  $6,328,803 
 
Staff needs direction to finalize funding source for the remaining cost of $349,188. 
 
Background:  
 
September 14, 2020 BOC Meeting: 
Board approved Public Works Shop Project 
Board approved $138,717 to be funded with 2012 SPLOST Public Works Allocation 
Prior Geotechnical and Engineering Costs - $19,631 
Final cost balance of $349,188 to be allocated to a specific fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
Total Cost of Building Project Including Geotechnical and Engineering - $507,537.00 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Need motion to specify specific funding source for remaining $349,188 
  



Business Item 10: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Health Department 
 
Date:   September 13, 2021 
 
Subject: CDBG Health Department Project – Remaining Funds Disposition 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Total 2019 CDBG Grant       $750,000 
 
Remaining Grant Funds       $25,950 
 
Remaining Grant Administrative Fees owed to NEGRC  $25,000 
 
8-13-21 Loan Balance for Purchase of Building   $217,384 
 
Required Cash Match of $22,500 paid by District Health 
 
Staff needs direction for disposition of remaining grant funds of $25,950 
 
 
Background:  
 
BOC applied and was awarded a CDBG grant in 2019. 
 
Project was the Jasper County Health Department. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Board Discretion 
  



Business Item 11: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   September 13, 2021 
 
Subject: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meeting as Needed 
 
 
Summary:  
 
 
Schedule work sessions and called meetings as needed. 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Board Discretion 

 


	MONTICELLO, GEORGIA
	*** The meeting will be live streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page.
	***See Revised Continued Precautions in Response to Covid-19 at bottom of Page 2.
	*** Citizen Access will be available with limited Seating. ***
	Agenda Detail 7 - Human Resources Report for September 2021.pdf
	Current Open Positions
	New Hires
	Terminations/Resignations
	Total Employees = 168
	Upcoming Board Appointments Needed:




